Ref : CBY/PL/ES/1

AE
L egislative Council

L C Paper No. CB(1)179/07-08
(These minutes have been seen
by the Administration)

Panel on Economic Services

Minutes of meeting

held on Wednesday, 18 July 2007, from 10:00 am
in the Chamber of the L egislative Council Building

Member s present

M ember s absent

Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, SBS, JP (Chairman)

Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, SBS, JP (Deputy Chairman)
Ir Dr Hon Raymond HO Chung-tai, SBS, S.B.$t.J., JP
Dr Hon David L1 Kwok-po, GBM, GBS, JP

Hon Fred L1 Wah-ming, JP

Dr Hon LUI Ming-wah, SBS, JP

Hon CHAN Kam-lam, SBS, JP

Hon SIN Chung-kai, SBS, JP

Hon Howard Y OUNG, SBS, JP

Hon Miriam LAU Kin-yee, GBS, JP

Hon Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen, SBS, JP

Hon WONG Ting-kwong, BBS

Hon KWONG Chi-kin

Hon TAM Heung-man

Hon James TIEN Pei-chun, GBS, JP
Hon LAU Chin-shek, JP

Hon Vincent FANG Kang, JP

Hon Ronny TONG Ka-wah, SC
Hon CHIM Pui-chung



Public officers
attending

-2.
Agendaltem Il & IV

Ms Eva CHENG, JP
Secretary for Transport and Housing

Mr Norman LO, AE, JP
Director-General of Civil Aviation

Mr Francis CHENG
Principal Assistant Secretary for Transport and Housing
(Transport)

MissFionalLl
Assistant Secretary for Transport and Housing
(Transport)

Mr Victor LIU Chi-yung
Chief, Flight Standards
Civil Aviation Department

Mr TSANG Yuk-poon
Chief, Airworthiness Standards
Civil Aviation Department

AgendaltemV

Mr Edward YAU Tang-wah, JP
Secretary for the Environment

MsAnissaWONG Sean-yee, JP
Permanent Secretary for the Environment /
Director of Environmental Protection

Mr Roy TANG Yun-kwong
Deputy Secretary for the Environment

Agendaltem VI

Mr Frederick MA, JP
Secretary for Commerce and Economic Devel opment

Miss Yvonne CHOI, JP
Permanent Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development (Commerce, Industry and Tourism)

MissAU King-chi, JP
Commissioner for Tourism



Attendance by
invitation

-3-

MsAnnie CHOI Suk-han, JP
Deputy Secretary for Commerce & Economic
Development (Commerce & Industry)3

Agenda ltem VI

MsAnnie CHOI Suk-han, JP
Deputy Secretary for Commerce & Economic
Development (Commerce & Industry)3

Mr Luke AU YEUNG Ho-lok

Principle Assistant Secretary for Commerce &
Economic Development (Commerce & Industry)
Special Duties

Mr Eric PANG Yiu-hung
Acting Chief Electrical & Mechanical Engineer
Electrical & Mechanical Services Department

Mr CHEUNG Sai-yan
Head of Trade Controls
Customs and Excise Department

Mr SO Tat-foon
Assistant Director (Support)
Office of the Telecommunications Authority

Agendaltem VIlI

MissAU King-chi, JP
Commissioner for Tourism

Ms Kinnie WONG
Assistant Commissioner for Tourism

Agendaltem VIlI

Ocean Park Corporation

Dr Allan ZEMAN
Chairman
Board of the Ocean Park Corporation

Mr Tom MEHRMANN
Chief Executive



Action

-4-

Mr Matthias LI
Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Financia Officer

Clerk in attendance : Ms Connie SZETO
Chief Council Secretary (1)6

Saff in attendance Ms Debbie YAU
Senior Council Secretary (1)1

Ms Michelle NIEN
Legidative Assistant (1)9

Confirmation of minutesand mattersarising
(LC Paper No. CB(1)2095/06-07 - Minutes of meeting held on
28 May 2007)

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 May 2007 were confirmed.

[ I nformation papersissued since last meeting
(LC Paper No. CB(1)2061/06-07(01) - Tables and graphs showing the
(issued via e-mail on 4 July 2007) import and retail prices of major
oil products from June 2005 to
May 2007 furnished by the
Census and Statistics
Department)

2. Members noted the information paper issued since last meeting.

1 Meeting with the Secretary for Transport and Housing

3. At the invitation of the Chairman, the Secretary for Transport and Housing
(STH) remarked that she fully appreciated the need for the Administration to brief
Members of the Legislative Council (LegCo) regularly on the latest development in
aviation, maritime and logistics and to consult them on relevant matters with aview
to formulating the best policies for the overall interest of Hong Kong. She then
highlighted the major areas of work of the Transport and Housing Bureau (THB) in
strengthening Hong Kong's position as a premier transportation and logistics hub in
Asiaand an international maritime centre as follows:

(@ Given Mainland's robust economic development, and Hong Kong's
strategic location in Asia and the provison of comprehensive



Action

(b)

(©

-5-

supporting infrastructure; there was much room for the development
of aviation, maritime and logistics industries in Hong Kong and
further co-operation with the Mainland on various fronts. To
enhance the competitiveness of Hong Kong's airport and port, the
Administration had been taking progressive steps to improve
transport infrastructure and networks with the Mainland. The
commissioning of Shenzhen Bay Bridge and Shenzhen Bay Port, the
proposed Tuen Mun Western Bypass (TMWB) and the access
between Tuen Mun and Chek Lap Kok could help expedite the flow
of people and goods between the Mainland and Hong Kong.

To facilitate the integration of the various logistics services in the
supply chain, the Administration would step up efforts in providing
basic infrastructure conducive to continuous development of the
logistics sector.  While the feasibility study for the development of
the proposed logistic park had reached its final phase, suitable lands
near Kwai Tsing Container Terminal had been identified for the
development of logistics facilities on a long-term basis. Moreover,
to enhance cross-boundary trucking efficiency, the Administration
was keen to promote e-logistics.  For instance, the Government was
sponsoring an On-Board Trucker Information System pilot project
which involved the use of such information technology as global
positioning system and other wireless communications facilities on
board trucks to enhance trucking operations. In addition, the
Administration would continue discussion with the Guangdong
authorities to lower cross-boundary road haulage cost.

On aviation, Hong Kong International Airport (HKIA) had time and
again been awarded as the best airport in the world.  In recent years,
three more loca airlines had joined the existing three in providing
scheduled flight services in Hong Kong. The Administration would
continue to implement the progressive liberalization policy in air
services and worked with Hong Kong's aviation partners in increasing
the capacity. It would also liaise with the civil aviation authorities
and airports in the Pearl River Delta (PRD) region on airspace
management. As regards hardware, the Civil Aviation Department
(CAD) had obtained funding approval for replacing the air traffic
control (ATC) system by the end of 2012 to meet the anticipated
growth of air traffic. It aso planned to seek funding approval for the
development of CAD's new headquarters on the Airport Island to
house the new ATC system as well as to enhance management
efficiency. Moreover, the Airport Authority Hong Kong (AAHK)
had earmarked $4,500 million to develop aviation support facilities to
increase the handling capacity of HKIA. It had aso been
conducting feasibility study of constructing athird runway.



Action

-6-

(d) Regarding port development, the Administration would soon
complete the Port Cargo Forecast Study and the Ecology Study on
Northwest Lantau to work out the optimal timing for constructing
Container Terminal 10 and assess the environmental suitability of the
location. To ensure the supply of maritime professionals to sustain
and further develop the shipping and maritime industry, the
Administration had introduced various training incentive schemes for
Hong Kong young people, and would implement a scholarship
scheme to encourage local and Mainland graduates to take up a
marine-related post-graduate programme in Hong Kong and
eventually join the shipping and maritime industry.

Discussion
Cross boundary traffic

4, Mr SIN Chung-kai was concerned that despite commissioning of the Hong
Kong-Shenzhen Western Corridor in July 2007 and opening of the Lok Ma Chau
Spur Line later this year, the new transport infrastructure had lagged behind rapid
economic integration between Hong Kong and Shenzhen and growth in
cross-boundary traffic. In addition to pursuing the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Express Rail Link and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge (HZMB),
Mr SIN enquired about the Administration's further plan in the next five years in
developing cross-boundary transport infrastructure to improve the linkage with the
Mainland.

5. STH acknowledged that the continuous development of transport
infrastructure was key to enhancing the competitiveness of Hong Kong. On the
latest development of the HZMB, the Administration, together with the Guangdong
and Macao authorities, were pressing ahead with the studies on the location and
arrangements of boundary crossing facilities, and on the financing arrangements of
the project. The construction of the proposed TMWB and Tuen Mun — Chek Lap
Kok Link would serve as a direct link of the Shenzhen Bay Bridge, HZMB and the
public transport interchange at HKIA. As regards the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Express Rail Link, the Administration was actively discussing with the
Mainland authorities concerned to take forward the project expeditiously.

Airport and aviation services

6. Noting that there was a plan to construct a third runway in HKIA,
Mr Howard YOUNG reflected the industry's view that priority should be given to
resolving the problem of airspace congestion in the PRD region. Mr Fred LI also
sought information about the measures adopted by relevant authorities for
improving air traffic management in the PRD region and the latest progress.

7. STH considered that the feasibility study for constructing a third runway
and measures for improving airspace management should be undertaken in parallel.
She advised that CAD would continue to liaise with civil aviation authorities of the



Action

-7-

Mainland and Macao via the tripartite working group with a view to improving the
use of airspace in the PRD region.

8. Noting the difficulties in recruiting pilot trainees from the local market,
Mr Howard YOUNG asked whether consideration could be given to relaxing the
recruitment criteria so long as they met the international standards. He also urged
that THB should liaise with the Security Bureau in facilitating the admission of
gualified pilots from overseas under the Quality Migrant Admission Scheme.

9. The Director-General of Civil Aviation (DGCA) recognized the need to
ensure the adequate supply of relevant professionals for Hong Kong to maintain its
status as an international and regional aviation hub and said that requirements for
recruiting and training pilots in Hong Kong were in line with international
standards. While CAD was prepared to review and improve the system, he was
not aware that airlines operating in Hong Kong had encountered any problem in
recruiting pilot trainees.

10. The Chairman was very concerned that the action taken by some taxi
drivers blocking roads to the airport in protest against new traffic arrangements
might have affected the traffic to the airport and impaired the image of Hong Kong
as an international and regional aviation centre.

11. In response, STH considered the action by the taxi drivers inappropriate
and unlawful which had affected the smooth operation of the airport. She pointed
out that the new transport arrangement was the result of lengthy discussion among
relevant parties and the resultant framework had reasonably balanced the interests
of al stakeholders. She called on the taxi sector to remain calm and discuss with
the relevant parties in making improvement to the arrangement.

Port development and logistics

12. Miss TAM Heung-man expressed concerned about high terminal handling
charges (THC) in Hong Kong vis-avis Mainland ports, thus undermining the
attractiveness of Hong Kong port to many traders. She enquired about measures
taken by the Administration in enhancing competitiveness of Hong Kong port.

13. STH acknowledged the importance of port development to the long-term
development of Hong Kong. However, she pointed out that due to difference in
cost structures between Hong Kong and the Mainland, it was not possible for Hong
Kong to compete with the Mainland with a lower cost in handling cargoes. Thus,
Hong Kong had specialized in value-added supply chain management services by
promoting e-logistics and applying information technology to trucking operation.
She re-iterated that to help the development of logistics sector in Hong Kong, the
Administration had identified sites for the development of new container terminal
as along-term strategy for port expansion.



Action

-8-

14. Mr Abraham SHEK enquired that apart from the devel opment of new cruise
terminal facilities at Kai Tak, whether there were other plans to develop similar
facilities, such as alocating land for the expansion of the Ocean Terminal.

15. STH clarified that cruise termina were tourism infrastructure under the
purview of the Tourism Commission (TC) overseen by the Secretary for Commerce
and Economic Development. Nevertheless, as terminal facilities for cargo and
passenger vessels were essential infrastructure conducive to Hong Kong's maritime
industry, THB would maintain close liaison and co-operation with TC in developing
new cruise terminal facilities.

AV Proposed amendmentsto the Air Navigation (Hong Kong) Order 1995
(LC Paper No. CB(1)2090/06-07(01) - Information paper provided by
the Administration

L C Paper No. CB(1)2164/06-07(01) - Powerpoint presentation
(issued via e-mail on 18 July 2007) material  provided by the
Administration)

Briefing by the Administration

16. With the aid of power-point, the Chief, Flight Standards of CAD (C,
FSICAD) briefed members on the Government's proposa to amend the Air
Navigation (Hong Kong) Order 1995 (Cap. 448 sub.leg.C) (the Order) to
implement updated requirements of the International Civil Aviation Organization
(ICAO). He said that section 2A of the Civil Aviation Ordinance (Cap. 448)
empowered the Chief Executivein Council (CE in C) to make subsidiary legisation
to give effect to the Convention on International Civil Aviation and any Annex
thereto relating to international standards and recommended practices, and
generaly for regulating air navigation. The Order was made for the regulation of
registration and marking of aircraft, certification of air operators, airworthiness and
equipment of aircraft, operation of aircraft, control of air traffic, rules of the air,
aerodromes and aeronautical lights, licensing of aviation personnel, documents and
recordsetc. C, FS/CAD further highlighted the following points:

(@ The purposes of the Order were to implement international Standards
and Recommended Practices (SARPs), ensure aviation safety and
operational efficiency, and maintain Hong Kong's status as a centre of
international and regional aviation;

(b) 1CAO updated its international civil aviation requirements (i.e. ICAO
SARPs) from time to time. Hong Kong implemented new SARPs
generally through administrative measures for compliance by the
aviation industry;



Action

-9-

(c) To ensure that Hong Kong's aviation legidation was in line with
international SARPS, it was necessary to incorporate new provisions
in the Order. It was proposed to amend the Order to reflect latest
SARPs in the areas of airworthiness, aircraft equipment, introduction
of safety management, data preservation, personnel licensing and new
definitions; and

(d) Maor proposals for amendments included the following (details as
set out in LC Paper No CB(1)2164/06-07(01)):

(i) Introduction of new requirements to enhance aviation safety;

(i) Revision of definitions for certain terms to tie in with ICAO
definitions; and

(iif) Deletion of obsolete provisions.

17. C, FSICAD further advised that the proposed amendments had received
genera support from the Technical Subcommittee of the Aviation Development
Advisory Committee, and the aviation industry including the local airlines,
maintenance organizations as well as other related organizations such as the Hong
Kong Airline Pilots Association. Members noted that subject to Members' views
and the approval of the CE in C, the Administration planned to submit the relevant
legislative amendments to LegCo for approval through the negative vetting process
in the first quarter of 2008.

Discussion

18. Mr Howard YOUNG expressed support for the proposed amendments to
the Order as it was crucial for Hong Kong, as an international aviation centre in the
region, to comply with international standards. On the proposal of introducing
new requirements on the proper use and functioning of airborne collision avoidance
system on aircraft, Mr YOUNG was concerned whether aircraft of the six local
airlines, in particular those of smaller scale, were already equipped with such
system. He further enquired whether non-local aircraft coming to Hong Kong
would be required to install the same system and meet the new requirements.

19. In response, DGCA advised that all local airlines aircraft exceeding
5700 kg, including those used for public transport, had aready been required to
install airborne collison avoidance system. Non-local aircraft overflying the
Hong Kong Flight Information Region or landing in Hong Kong were also required
to comply with the new requirements.

20. Mr Abraham SHEK was concerned about aircraft safety when there was no
requirement of installing airborne collision avoidance system. DGCA highlighted
technology advancement in the last two decades when several generations of
airborne collision avoidance system had been developed. He added that Hong
Kong had been requesting airlines to install the system for aircraft in accordance




Action

-10-

with the requirements set by ICAO through administrative measures (i.e. Hong
Kong Aeronautical Information Publication).

21, Mr Abraham SHEK enquired about the proposed amendment of introducing
a new type of pilot licence. DGCA advised that in addition to the existing three
types of pilot licences, viz. private pilot's licence, commercial pilot's licence and
airline transport pilot's licence, CAD would introduce a new multi-crew pilot's
licence, which was a new ICAO pilot licensing regime. He explained that to tiein
with the rapid development of aviation technology in the past decade and the
anticipated growth in air traffic in the coming years, many airlines had resorted to
using large aircraft with more sophisticated technology in navigation. To meet the
industry's demand for more pilots with advanced training, the multi-crew pilot's
licence was created to enable a trainee to take up the role of co-pilot after a
comprehensive training programme. In reply to Mr SHEK's concern about the
possible difficulty for pilots holding overseas licences to operate Hong Kong
registered aircraft, DGCA said that it was not easy to ascertain the scope of training
and flying standards requirements under which the licences were issued by the
overseas authorities. Therefore, overseas licence holders, whilst exempted from
taking certain written examinations, were required to obtain Hong Kong pilot
licence by passing some written examinations and flying assessment tests.

22. The Chairman enquired about the proposed amendments relating to
specifying English language proficiency requirements for pilots and air traffic
controllers. DGCA advised that ICAO had promulgated the syllabus and
benchmark of the 6-level English proficiency requirements for pilots and air traffic
controllers and stipulated that by March 2008, only pilots and air traffic controllers
who had attained level 4 English proficiency could continue serving in international
flights. CAD had communicated with local airlines on the ICAQO's requirements
and in response, they had set up training and assessment centres accredited by CAD.
Those pilots or air traffic controllers who had been assessed to be qualified would
have their attained level of English proficiency specified in the relevant licence.

23. Mr SIN Chung-kai expressed support for the proposal. However, as the
proposed amendments involved quite a number of technical issues, he opined that
the Administration should consider providing the draft Order for members
consideration before submitting it to LegCo for negative vetting. In reply, DGCA
explained that the Department of Justice was currently drafting the proposed
amendments.  Subject to the approval of the CE in C, the Administration planned
to submit the relevant legidlative amendments to LegCo for approval in early 2008.

Vv M eeting with the Secretary for the Environment

Briefing by the Secretary for the Environment

24, At the invitation of the Chairman, the Secretary for the Environment (SEN)
briefed members on the work priorities of the Environment Bureau (ENB) which
was newly set up with the main objectives to provide quality living environment,




Action

-11-

reduce pollution, control emissions, enhance effective use of energy, and reinforce
regional cooperation in environmental protection. SEN then highlighted some of
the issues which the Panel had expressed concern, including energy and its impact
on the environment, review of the electricity market, the Liquefied Natura Gas
(LNG) Receiving Terminal proposed by CLP Power (CLP), and sustainable
development. The speaking note of SEN (in Chinese only) was attached.

Discussion
Energy and its impact on the environment
25. Mr CHAN Kam-lam was concerned about the progress in introducing

competition to the local electricity market and enquired about the current status of
an application from a company for supplying electricity to Hong Kong.

26. SEN confirmed that it was the Administration's long-term objective to
further open up the electricity market of Hong Kong. The Administration would
make the necessary preparation during the next 10 years, including drawing up the
proper regulatory framework for other new supply sources to access the existing
power grid. On the progress of processing the application from a new power
company, SEN said that the proposal only involved supplying electricity to a small
area and the Administration had requested the company to provide information
demonstrating its capability to maintain a reliable supply at a reasonable cost.
With aview to avoiding duplication of network, the Administration had advised the
company to consider discussing with the current supplier the option of using the
existing grid to supply electricity.

27. On CLP's proposal of constructing anew LNG Receiving Terminal at South
Soko Island, Mr SIN Chung-kai urged ENB to take into consideration the opposing
views of green groups. He added that as a consumer, he would not support the
project as the $8 billion Terminal would enlarge the asset base for calculating return
to CLP and would in turn increase electricity tariff for consumers. Sharing the
view, Mr Fred LI was concerned whether the Administration would consider the
proposal alongside the discussion with CLP over the new bilateral agreement.

28. On the construction of a new LNG Receiving Terminal a South Soko
Island, SEN said that CLP had aready proposed measures to mitigate the negative
environmental impacts during construction of the Terminal. While CLP had been
granted an Environmental Permit for constructing and operating the Terminal, ENB
would further consider other factors in examining the proposal, including whether
the proposal was the best means to supply natural gas to CLP, the suitability of the
selected site, the distribution and development of natural gas in the region etc.
SEN added that the Administration would consider the views of the green groups on
the proposal. In this connection, he was aware that the Panel on Environmental
Affairs (EA) had scheduled a meeting with deputations on this subject on 20 July
2007.



Action

-12 -

29. Mr SIN Chung-kai highlighted the Government's challenges in enhancing
environmental protection in the negotiation with the two power companies on the
new bilateral agreements and urged SEN to stand firm in the process, in particular
on issues relating to emissions reduction and lowering the permitted rate of return.
Recalling that the former Secretary for Economic Development and Labour had
stood firm in lowering the permitted rate of return to a single-digit, Mr Fred LI
enquired whether SEN would maintain the same firm stance.

30. In response, SEN explained that the proposals in respect of the duration of
the new bilateral agreements and the permitted rate of return as set out in the
Government's public consultation document would remain as the starting point for
the negotiation with the power companies. While the Administration fully
understood the public's aspiration for a reasonable electricity tariff and the need to
reduce emissions, it should be noted that the two power companies were listed
companies accountable to their shareholders. SEN solicited members
understanding that it was not practicable for the Administration to revea its
negotiation strategy in public. Nevertheless, he undertook that ENB would
endeavour to come up with new agreements with the two power companies that
were fair and reasonable, and in line with the overall interest of Hong Kong.

31. Mr_Abraham SHEK requested the Administration to provide further
information on the utilization of the balance in CLP's Development Fund, and the
Administration's plans to dispose of the Fund upon the expiry of the Scheme of
Control Agreement in 2008. SEN undertook to do so.

(Post-meeting note: The reply from the Administration was circulated to
members vide L C Paper No. CB(1)2438/06-07(01) on 5 October 2007.)

Sustai nable economic devel opment

32. Noting that the subject of sustainable development straddled across a
number of policy areas, inter alia, economic development, manpower, education
and health services, Ir Dr Raymond HO stressed the need for ENB to balance the
objectives of protecting the environment and enhancing economic development in
carrying out its work. In this connection, he was concerned how ENB would
promote the concept of sustainable development to other bureaux and departments.

33. Noting that some major projects had been put on hold due to environmental
concerns raised by various parties, Mr_Abraham SHEK urged SEN to strike a
proper balance between protecting the environment and facilitating continuous
economic development to achieve a win-win situation. Moreover, he expressed
reservation about adopting the "polluter pays' principle in implementing
environmental protection programmes as it was the Government's responsibility to
protect the environment.

34. SEN acknowledged the need to maintain a proper balance between
objectives of protecting the environment and pursuing economic growth. Citing
power supply as an example, he said that while using LNG for generating



Action

-13-

electricity could certainly reduce emissions, this would have impact on electricity
tariff as the cost for LNG was much higher than that of coal. In implementing
programmes on environmental protection and energy supplies, ENB would
carefully consider the interests of various stakeholders and endeavour to strike a
proper balance in the process.

35. Noting that abundant land was available for development in North New
Territories (NNT), Mr WONG Ting-kwong sought SEN's view on how to balance
the need to conserve the nature and maintain economic development, such as
through developing green tourism in NNT.

36. SEN advised that the development of the river-loop area near the border
with Shenzhen was under the portfolio of the Development Bureau and ENB would
provide inputs in relation to aspects of environmental protection and nature
conservation.

Communications with LegCo and the community

37. Miss TAM Heung-man noted with concern that SEN had not attended the
meeting of EA Panel on 16 July 2007 which was to meet with deputations for views
on the proposal of imposing an environmental levy on plastic shopping bags. She
urged that SEN should attend meetings of Panels and other committees of LegCo to
hear public views on important issues.

38. SEN stressed the commitment of the third-term of the Government to work
closely with LegCo and reach out to the public in formulating and implementing
policies. He assured members that while he would endeavour to attend meetings
of LegCo and its committees as far as possible to enhance communication with
Members and the public, the most suitable officers in the relevant areas would be
deployed to attend meetings in order to achieve the best results.  In this connection,
SEN said that he had attended two LegCo meetings in recent weeks for a motion
debate and the resumption of second reading of a Bill. In addition to the meeting
of this Panel, he would also attend the meeting of EA Panel to be held on 20 July
2007.

VI Meeting with the Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development

Brief introduction by the Secretary for Commerce and Economic Devel opment

39. At the invitation of the Charman, the Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development (SCED) highlighted the Administration's commitment to
maintaining a close working relationship with LegCo Members. He advised that
under the re-organization of the Government structure, the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau (CEDB) would take on, inter alia, the policy areas
of tourism development and consumer protection, which were under the purview of
ES Pandl.




Action

-14 -

Discussion
Tourism development in Hong Kong

40. While appreciating the Administration's effort in commissioning several
large-scale tourism infrastructure in the past years which had helped boost the
number of visitors to Hong Kong, Mr_ SIN Chung-kai considered that the
Administration should step up efforts in developing new tourist attractions. He
further enquired about CEDB's work in co-ordinating with other relevant bureaux
and departments in promoting Hong Kong to overseas tourists and local visitors.

41. In response, SCED acknowledged the important contribution of the tourism
sector to the economy of Hong Kong including revenue from tourism expenditure
and creation of job opportunities for related industries.  In fact, the Administration
had spared no effort in enhancing the development of tourism. For instance, on
hardware facilities, a number of large-scale new tourism infrastructure such as the
Wetland Park and Hong Kong Disneyland (HKD) had been opened in recent years
and improvement and re-development projects for existing attractions, like Ocean
Park, the Peak, Aberdeen and Lel Yue Mun were underway. In respect of tourism
software, Hong Kong had joined hands with the Mainland authorities in launching
"Honest and Quality Hong Kong Tours' with a view to enhancing choices for
Mainland visitors and protecting their consumer rights. Moreover, relevant parties
had also strengthened regulation of trade conduct of the travel industry. Besides
the Tourism Commission (TC), Hong Kong Tourism Board (HKTB) would
continue to promote a hospitable culture among those working in the tourism
industry and in the community at large, and maintain Hong Kong's reputation as
"gourmets paradise" and "shoppers paradise”.

42. Noting the increasing popularity among Hong Kong people spending their
holidays in resort areas outside Hong Kong, Mr Andrew LEUNG urged that
consideration should be given to developing resort areas in Hong Kong. In this
connection, Mr LEUNG sought information on the progress of the Administration's
earlier plan to develop spa and resort facilities on South Lantau.

43. In response, SCED pointed out that quite a number of hotelsin Hong Kong
were already providing spa facilities and he was aware that some investors had
indicated interest in developing resort hotelsin Hong Kong. He assured members
that the Administration would continue to identify new tourism projects to increase
Hong Kong's attractiveness to visitors.

44, Given Hong Kong's status as a famous international financial and
commercia centre, the Chairman considered that there was much room for Hong
Kong to develop "business tourism” which would bring substantial economic
benefits.  In this connection, he suggested TC and HKTB to partner with the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council (HKTDC) in promoting Hong Kong as the
premier destination for business travellers.




Action

-15-

45, Highlighting the importance of promoting Hong Kong to attract more
tourists, SCED stressed that HKTB and TC had spared no effort in marketing Hong
Kong to Mainland and overseas visitors. SCED recalled that when promoting
Hong Kong's capital market to overseas companies in his former capacity as the
Secretary of Financial Services and the Treasury, HKTB and HKTDC had been
joining in launching the promotional activities targeting at the high-yield
business-cum-leisure and family segments of the market.

46. Miss TAM Heung-man noted with concern that as shown in the July 2007
issue of Travel and Industry, Hong Kong had fallen out of the world's top ten in
terms of best tourist destinations and its ranking had also dropped from 5" to 7"
among all Asian cities. She sought the Administration's measures to enhance the
competitiveness of Hong Kong as a premier destination for tourists.

47. In response, SCED highlighted that Hong Kong received over 20 million
visitors annually over the past few years. He was confident that Hong Kong
would remain a world-class destination for visitors. With concerted efforts of
stakeholders to develop new tourism infrastructure, enhance quality service to
visitors, and promote Hong Kong at various fronts, he believed that Hong Kong
would maintain its status as the Asias world city.

48. Mr Fred LI enquired about the progress of the investigation into the
incident of the falling of a cabin from Ngong Ping (NP) Skyrail and hoped that the
cable car service could be resumed as early as possible.  Pointing out that shopsin
NP Village had suffered due to the suspension of cable car service and that some
shops had aready closed down, Mr Andrew LEUNG sought the Administration's
measures to help shop tenants concerned.

49, Referring to his reply to an oral question on the subject at the LegCo
meeting on 11 July 2007, SCED advised that the investigation report was expected
to be ready before end of September.  He stressed that the Administration's priority
was to ensure the safe operation of NP Skyrail. Unless its safety had been
confirmed, the Administration would not allow NP Skyrail to resume its service.
On Village tenants, SCED understood that despite the Mass Transit Railway
Corporation Limited (MTRCL) had waived rents for the suspension period, tenants
still suffered as they had to bear day-to-day operating expenses. MTRCL was
working on other support measures to assist tenants to tide over the difficult period.

50. Citing publicity material he had seen in Guangzhou featuring a 4-day tour
to Hong Kong at a very low fare of $800, Mr Fred LI expressed concern about
problems associated with negative- or zero-fare tours to Hong Kong and stressed
the need for the relevant parties to join hands in promoting quality Hong Kong
toursin the Mainland.

51. C for Tourism said that given Mainland was Hong Kong's largest source
market for visitors, HKTB would continue to promote Hong Kong to Mainland
visitors as a cosmopolitan city and premier destination in Asia. With the
Administration's plan for developing a new cruise terminal at Kai Tak, C for




Action

-16 -

Tourism advised that she had recently met with the tourism authorities in
Guangdong, Hainan, and Fujian provinces to explore opportunities for developing
cruise itineraries involving Hong Kong and coastal Mainland cities.

52. Mr CHAN Kam-lam expressed concern over the existing regulatory regime
of the travel trade involving different bodies and urged the Administration to
coordinate the efforts of different stakeholders in enhancing the effectiveness of the
regime. Mr Fred LI said that he had time and again raised concern about the
effectiveness of the current self-regulatory regime of the Travel Industry Council of
Hong Kong (TIC) and considered that the Administration should undertake a
review on the regulatory structure.

53. C for Tourism agreed that to stamp out the malpractices arising from zero-
or negative-fare tours, concerted efforts of relevant stakeholders, viz travel agents,
tourist guides and retail shops, as well as the enforcement agencies were required.
In addition to the launching of "Honest and Quality Tours in Hong Kong", TC,
HKTB, TIC and the Consumer Council (CC) would continue to work together to
promote smart consumption, educate Mainland visitors on their rights and choices,
and curb trade mal practices and misconduct.

Consumer protection

54. Noting that small and medium-sized enterprises (SMES) had expressed
concern regarding introducing a cross-sector competition law in Hong Kong,
Miss TAM Heung-man enquired how the Administration would address the
concerns. As CC would only deploy two legal advisers to help drafting the new
law, she asked whether the Administration would consider allocating more
resources to CC for undertaking the task.

55. SCED advised that the Administration had completed public consultation
on the way forward for competition policy in Hong Kong and was now working on
the drafting of the new competition law. In view of the concerns raised by some
SMEs, the Administration fully understood the need to continue engaging SMES in
drafting the new legidation with a view to enhancing their understanding of its
content and implementation.

56. The Permanent Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development
(Commerce, Industry and Tourism) clarified that the Department of Justics was
currently drafting the new competition law. In view of the complexity and wide
scope of the legidation, the Department had already engaged overseas experts to
support its work.  Separately, the Government was pursuing a two-stage approach
to enhance the consumer protection regime of Hong Kong. During the first stage,
the Administration was taking urgent action to strengthen the regulatory tools to
protect consumers. This would involve ssimple and straight-forward amendments
to existing legidation in order to tackle the malpractices of unscrupulous shops and
bring charges against them. Meanwhile, CC was conducting a comprehensive
review of existing measures under the stage two review to protect consumer rights.
As the review covered a wide range of issues and existing legidation, the




Action

-17 -

Administration was mindful of the need to provide CC with necessary resources for
undertaking the task and would liaise further with CC in this respect.

VI I ssuesrelating to safety of mobile phones
(LC Paper No. CB(1)2090/06-07(02) - Information paper provided by
the Administration

LC Paper No. CB(1)2121/06-07(01) - Letter dated 9 July 2007 from
Hon Fred LI to the Chairman
(Chinese version only))

Briefing by the Administration

57. At the invitation of the Chairman, the Deputy Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development (Commerce and Industry)3 (DS/CED) briefed members on
the control framework on the safety of mobile phones in Hong Kong. She
explained that mobile phones with original batteries as parts integral to the mobile
phones were required to comply with the specifications prescribed by the Office of
Telecommunications Authority under section 32D of the Telecommunications
Ordinance (Cap.106). Mobile phone batteries that were separately sold as optional
accessories were consumer goods under the control of the Consumer Goods Safety
Ordinance (Cap. 456) enforced by the Customs and Excise Department (C&ED).
Chargers used for charging mobile phone batteries were categorized as electrical
products and governed by the Electrical Products (Safety) Regulation (Cap. 406G)
enforced by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department (EMSD). In
addition, C&ED also took vigorous and sustained enforcement actions under the
Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Cap. 362) against counterfeit mobile phones and
batteries. She stressed that the three departments would continue to monitor the
safety of mobile phones and their accessories available in the market.

Discussion

58. Referring to the recent incident concerning explosion of a mobile phone in
the Mainland, Mr Fred L1 stressed the need for the Administration to take urgent
action to ensure the safety of mobile phone in Hong Kong. In view that the
current regulatory regime involved different ordinances enforced by three
government departments, Mr L1 was concerned about confusion to consumers and
problems relating to communication and coordination among different enforcement
agenies.

59. In response, DS/CED highlighted the different focus in respect of mobile
phone safety under the ordinances concerned. She assured members that CEDB had
maintained close liaison with the relevant departments to monitor the enforcement
situation. Where necessary, it would consider further measures to protect the
safety of consumers in using mobile phones.



Action

-18-

60. Noting that over the past weeks, C&ED had taken a series of operations
against local retail outlets suspected of selling counterfeit mobile phones and
batteries resulting in seizure of about 4 000 such products, Mr Fred LI enquired
about enforcement actions taken in respect of genuine and counterfeit mobile phone
and batteries, including the number of inspection or surveillance conducted in the
past few years, the number of counterfeit products seized, their safety condition and
the follow-up actions etc.

61. Mr SIN Chung-kai was concerned that many retail shops might have been
selling counterfeit mobile phone batteries and urged C&ED to conduct more
frequent operations against local retail outlets. Sharing the concern, Miss TAM
Heung-man pointed out that consumers had difficulty in differentiating genuine
mobile phone batteries from counterfeit ones.

62. DSCED advised that recognizing the potential safety problems of
counterfeit mobile phone batteries, C&ED had been stepping up surveillance
against these products in addition to regular spot checks at retail shops. She
undertook to provide the relevant information requested by members after the
meeting. While admitting the difficulties in differentiating counterfeit mobile
phone batteries which had been modeled closely on products of genuine brand
names, DS/CED said that C&ED would continue to work closely with trademark
owners to enhance the surveillance of counterfeit mobile phones and batteries sold
in the market. In reply to the Chairman on the safety of the counterfeit mobile
phone batteries seized in the first half of 2007, DS/CED remarked that they were
under safety testing and the results were yet to be available.

(Post-meeting note: The information provided by the Administration in
respect of genuine and counterfeit mobile phone batteries was circulated to
members vide L C Paper No. CB(1)2263/06-07(01)) on 10 August 2007.)

63. Miss TAM Heung-man enquired about operations against batteries sold
separately as optiona accessories to mobile phones. DS/CED advised that these
were optional accessories and were not counterfeit products. So far, C& ED had
only received two complaints relating to such products. However, the follow-up
investigations revealed no evidence suggesting that the concerned products were
unsafe. In previous safety testing of samples taken from the market, none of the
samples were found unsafe.

64. Mr SIN Chung-kai noted that improper use of electrical and electronic
products, such as ipod, might cause danger to users. He considered that EMSD
should promulgate safety guidelines educating users proper ways in using the
relevant products. Mr Fred LI echoed the view. Given the high penetration rate
of mobile phones in Hong Kong, he further highlighted the need to educate the
public in choosing safe mobile phones and accessories.

65. The Acting Chief Electrical & Mechanical Engineer, EMSD advised that
EMSD had published a booklet containing safety tips on using mobile phone
chargers for reference of consumers. Moreover, EMSD had also publicized safety




Action -19-

messages on mobile phone charger to the public through various channels such as
newspaper column and safety talks.

VIIl  Update on the redevelopment plans of Ocean Park
(LC Paper No. CB(1)2090/06-07(03) - Information paper provided by
the Administration

L C Paper No. CB(1)2164/06-07(02) - Powerpoint presentation
(issued viae-mail on 18 July 2007) material provided by the Ocean
Park Corporation

L C Paper No. CB(1)2165/06-07(01) - The booklet provided by the
Ocean Park Corporation)

Briefing by the Administration and the Ocean Park Corporation

66. At the invitation of the Chairman, C for Tourism updated members on the
progress of the redevelopment plans of the Ocean Park which had commenced in
end 2006 comprising more than 70 attractions to be delivered in eight phases from
2007 to 2012-13 with an estimated cost of $5.55 billion. She added that TC had
hel ped secure statutory approval from various government departments with a view
to ensuring the smooth progress of the redevel opment works.

67. Upon invitation by the Chairman, Dr Allan ZEMAN, Chairman, Board of
the Ocean Park Corporation (OPC) and Mr Tom MEHRMANN, Chief Executive of
OPC highlighted the operation of Ocean Park since itsinception in 1977 with aid of
a power-point presentation. Mr MEHRMANN pointed out that the annual
attendance for Ocean Park had risen steadily over the years and reached its first
peak of 3.8 million in 1996-97. Having been operating for 30 years, Ocean Park
had created good memories for many kids and produced generational value as they
had grown up and brought their own kids to the Park. In recent years, Ocean Park
had maintained good relationship with key stakeholders, viz the government,
vendors, and employees; and paid attention to differential product qualities, such as
introducing new attractions including SkyFair and new baby pandas. To enhance
the attractiveness of Ocean Park to local residents as well as overseas tourists, OPC
had launched new promotions such as HKID promotion, birthday promotion, photo
promotion and weddings, as well as renewed the animal characters and fostered
"Love animals, Love Ocean Park" concept through interactivity opportunities.
Ocean Park had also staged five special events, i.e. Summer Splash, Halloween
Bash, Christmas Sensation, Chinese New Year and Easter Animal Encounter, which
had become annual attractions to visitors. As a result of the above efforts, the
annual park attendance had risen to 4.38 million in 2006. Dr Allan ZEMAN
expected that the park attendance would reach nearly 5 million in 2007.

68. Mr Tom MEHRMANN further advised that the redevelopment project for
Ocean Park was on schedule and on budget. The phased redevelopment had
allowed the Park to remain open throughout the period. The first attraction,




Action

-20-

SkyFair (which comprised helium and cold air balloons together with retail, food,
games and entertainment) was opened in February 2007. The redevelopment
plans would move forward with several new initiatives and attractions. On
financial arrangement, Mr MEHRMANN informed members that OPC was able to
secure 75% of the project cost, i.e. $4.2 billion, from commercia loans with 25
banks.

Discussion
Performance of Ocean Park

69. While appreciating OPC's effort in running and promoting Ocean Park
which had brought great success for the Park in various fronts, Mr Howard
YOUNG asked whether reference had been made to experiences in the
development of similar theme parks around the world, such as the Ocean World in
Brisbane.

70. Dr Allan ZEMAN pointed out that while there were many theme parks in
different parts of the world and a number of new theme parks were being developed
in China, Ocean Park had been very unique as it had offered visitors with a
combination of educational, conservation and entertainment experiences. It had
aso put in place new attractions to motivate people to re-visit the Park.
Mr Tom MEHRMANN added that Ocean Park was also unique in its location. It
was a park made by Hong Kong and grew in parallel with the city.

71. Mr Fred LI congratulated OPC on its success in revitalizing Ocean Park
since 2001 resulting in substantial increase in annual attendance figures. It was
envisaged that visitor numbers would further surge with completion of the
redevelopment plans. Given the unsatisfactory park attendance of Hong Kong
Disneyland (HKD), Mr LI saw an opportunity for Ocean Park and HKD to explore
collaboration and complement each other in creating synergy, such as launching
joint annual pass to both parks.

72. Dr Allan ZEMAN welcomed the suggestion of initiating partnership
between the two theme parks to help attract more tourists to visit Hong Kong.
While the management of HKD might need to be bounded by rules and regulations
of its parent company in the United States, OPC maintained an open attitude to any
suggested ways of collaboration.

73. C for Tourism highlighted the healthy competition between the two theme
parks resulting in improvements on the performance of both parks. The
Administration was pleased to see OPC's efforts in enhancing the attractiveness of
the Park to local residents and tourists, and the experience gained by HKD in
promoting the Park to different markets. In order to promote the two important
tourism infrastructure to Mainland visitors, HKTB had included both theme parks
in the itinerary of "Honest and Quality Hong Kong Tours'. Moreover, surveys
conducted by HKTB reveaed that about 50% of overnight tourists had visited one
of the theme parks while 10% of them had visited both. This had demonstrated




Action

-21 -

that the theme parks were "must-see" destinations for tourists, in particular for
family visitors.

74, The Chairman enquired about the changes to the park attendance and
in-park spending arising from the arrival of the two new baby pandas "Le Le" and
"Ying Ying". In response, Dr Allan ZEMAN indicated that guests had shown
strong interest in "Le Le" and "Ying Ying" and merchandizes featuring the new
baby pandas had also been well-received. As a result, both park attendance and
in-park spending had continued to rise during the previous month.

75. Noting that the Ocean Park Academy - Hong Kong (OPAHK) had
organized many useful courses with fees ranging from $50 to over $1,000 for
primary and secondary school students to explore the nature, Mr Fred LI opined
that these were good activities for kids and enquired whether OPC would consider
assisting children with financial hardship in joining the courses.

76. In reply, Mr Tom MEHRMANN advised that to encourage students
participation in the courses, OPAHK had offered sponsorship covering the full
course fees for students in need of financial aid. Moreover, OPAHK had also been
running a number of free outreach programmes for schools.

Re-development plans for Ocean Park

77, Mr SIN Chung-kai enquired about the progress of building new hotels in
Ocean Park under the re-development plans. Referring to his experience of
attending a conference held in a hotel inside a zoo, during which participants could
visit the zoo during lunch breaks, he considered that Ocean Park could explore
similar business opportunities.

78. Dr Allan ZEMAN confirmed that the re-development plans for Ocean Park
included a separate proposal to build three hotels. OPC had submitted the
proposal to the Government which was examining the details. He welcomed
Mr SIN's suggestion of organizing conferences inside or near the Park to allow
participants to enjoy the beauty and relaxing atmosphere of the Park during their
freetime.

79. C for Tourism supplemented that by 2012, the Park would be redeveloped
into a world-class marine theme park with more than 70 attractions. The three
planned themed hotels would further enhance the attractiveness of the Park as an
overnight destination for tourists. In reply to Mr SIN's further enquiry, she said
that the Government was studying the proposal including related issues concerning
planning and land use. While the hotel proposal was in line with the planning
concept, it was necessary to ascertain that the design, building and operation of the
hotels could complement the role of the Park as an educational, conservation and
entertainment facility for Hong Kong. She added that the hotel project would be
offered to the market through an open tender with land premium set at market rate.




Action

-22 -

80. While appreciating the success of Ocean Park in attracting more tourists to
Hong Kong and the Administration's plan to re-develop the Aberdeen harbour into a
"Fisherman's Wharf", Miss TAM Heung-man saw the need for the Administration
to devise measures to address concerns about increased traffic flow on the
transportation networks of Southern District. In this connection, she sought
information on the progress of the proposed construction of the South Island Line
(SIL).

81. C for Tourism acknowledged the importance of enhancing transportation
linkage in developing tourist attractions. She advised that as indicated in the
consultancy report of Ocean Park's redevelopment plans, the direction of visitor
flow to the Park would be different to that of residents in Wong Chuk Hang and
Aberdeen during peak hours.  Moreover, additiona coach parking and
pick-up/drop-off points would also be provided under the redevelopment plans. It
was therefore envisaged that the present transportation networks in Southern
District could meet the anticipated increase in visitor flow. On the Aberdeen
Tourism Project, C for Tourism said that the Administration planned to re-develop
and revitalize both sides of the Aberdeen harbour under the theme of "Fisherman's
Wharf" and developing exhibition facilities to unfold the history and story of
Aberdeen as a traditional fishing harbour. As regards the development of SIL,
Cfor Tourism understood that MTRCL had reviewed the need for SIL and
forwarded the study report to THB. The report was under examination by a
cross-departmental taskforce. She advised that in taking forward tourism projects
in Southern District, TC would highlight the advantage of mass transportation to the
various attractions.

82. In forecasting the use of SIL by visitors to Ocean Park, Mr Howard
YOUNG considered it useful to make reference to the patronage of Disney Resort
Line by visitors to HKD. C for Tourism said that roughly, more than 70% of
guests visiting HKD had travelled by Disney Resort Line.

83. Mr Howard Y OUNG was concerned whether the projected patronage to the
Park after re-development had taken into account the construction of SIL and hotels.
Dr Allan ZEMAN advised that the patronage and revenue projections had
discounted the effect of SIL and hotels which, if taken forward, would be bonus
bringing additional economic benefitsto the Park.

84. Mr CHAN Kam-lam pointed out that local residents were a major source of
visitors to Ocean Park. He noted that most local residents took either private car
or buses to the Park while tourists usually used coaches. He sought information
on the transportation used by different visitors and measures to attract more local
residents to the Park such as by reducing the bus fares to or parking fees at the Park.

85. In response, Mr Tom Mr MEHRMANN advised that about 90% of visitors
came to the Park by buses or tour coaches while the remaining 10% used private
cars. In fact, most local people took buses or taxis to the Park. The parking
facilities for private cars, which charged reasonably low fees, only overflowed for
fivedaysinayear. Under the redevelopment plans, the number of parking spaces




Action

-23-

for private cars would be doubled and there would be additional coach parking
gpaces as well. Mr Maitthias LI, Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Financial
Officer of OPC supplemented that many local residents travelled to the Park by
buses usually took those routes of lower fares, for example, getting off at the
Aberdeen Tunnel exit and walking to the Park. Dr Allan ZEMAN stressed that at
present, transportation and parking did not pose any problem to the Park. He
agreed that the construction of SIL would surely provide much convenience to
visitors.

86. Ms Miriam LAU commended the good performance of Ocean Park. She
believed that the Park, being the only one of its kind in South East Asia, would be
even more attractive to visitors after completion of the redevelopment plans. As
to the projected visitor numbers to the Park, she considered the forecast annual
attendance of about 5.8 million by 2012-13 given in the paper a bit conservative
given the attendance figure had been growing at 8% annually over the past few
years. Ms LAU was concerned whether the attendance was constrained by the
capacity of the Park.

87. In response, Dr Allan ZEMAN said that in projecting park attendance, OPC
had taken into consideration the worst case scenario. Indeed, it was out of
anyone's expectation for the Park to hit an annual attendance of over 4 million
during the renovation period. He further said that in addition to park attendance,
visitors' spending in merchandizes and catering was also an important indicator of
the Park's performance. On the concern about the capacity of the Park,
Dr ZEMAN and Mr Tom MEHRMANN advised that the Park had been designed
with a daily capacity of 35000 visitors. Currently, the Park usually received
10 000 to 15000 visitors per day. It was expected that upon completion of the
redevelopment plans, the Park would take on more visitors daily and alow longer
stay for visitors to enjoy the various attractions.

88. Summing up, the Chairman said that the Panel hoped that the
redevelopment of Ocean Park could be completed sooner to attract more tourists to
Hong Kong.

IX Any other business

89. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 1:05 pm.

Council Business Division 1
Legidative Council Secretariat
1 November 2007




Action

-24-

EﬁtFlEFI-IFEFIBZ%—f ?{E@r[—‘ ¥ (FIEJH[T\I} )

' BRURRRIE 5[ (7 E 7D e B AESS A
#“Ti/

i

S e

B fﬁﬂlf‘ﬂ%ﬁ&iﬁ%‘ Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁjﬁ?ﬁfﬂﬁﬂi ],E"%J:[FK[%‘HJBJE@EE iﬁ’?"ﬁ% :
a'sr? :gyﬁ il ﬁﬁﬁ]}af’rﬁp%k HERT (B i‘ﬁ[’[ﬁlﬁ B SR
BRESSHF] ELS RRIAL - Frobd FRURRS  FIRIEST (SRR g T
Sl ] K] SR BT S R DS gﬁm#5ﬁ~w¢#r‘¢naw' z@
WG I 5 T R S S VA S NG (e 5
liﬁtfﬂ S Al e T ey Fﬁrﬁﬁ?ﬂ Ll 2 I‘Eﬁlgl%‘f’ iz
el jm%ﬁMUﬁ »wm@W%Fgwﬂﬁg bﬂﬁ@%%
F"Tﬁ'fi_ et ‘U;[*— aE | FT]‘TU T o BRSO B F1- (g ke~ E FTJ“F”F
E‘E 19?{‘ [\}g[g’!—}ﬁﬂli&%[ﬁ—kiﬁfjuF[jﬁf[g F{ MT r‘u%‘;‘iﬂ?—f %E‘E 1&ﬂ‘ihEJLlr

EOFE RS R R
(—) BR=RR

CE PRI R PR (B R BRI T R SRR IR TR LR R -

PRI £ ﬁﬁi@ﬁﬁﬁ ﬁ%ﬂi%%ﬂu@W*%Fﬂﬁﬁ*b#@w
S PIFIERT = S YRIE = VRLRL i F A0 T B~ e

@#‘ SR SRR B [Efﬁt“* (BRI - e ELE IR - 25 P
= T AP e rERE - RS - ISR S EA T D e
VRS R P e 2 USR5

B - il = =R F[iﬁlﬁf G L 7 SRR 22 & (L TR A [
J%&*fﬁn&a’“%ﬁ LS R GO i”?} OIE= %o U i e R E I i I LS A
FE SR G I xgﬁjpﬁrﬁ‘ ([FRLZS bfio ™ (=R~

(=) Flpl et

iﬁ'{iﬁk;}j\»&é’g ﬁL[E]l%IQI]E:{'FF EE f:’sr EQFKJ IEJF } ; r[ @[ F“<<Fl ﬁ?UH 3% )
4 OO 158 4 2 g 25 P RIS ]84 RO, £
S R ﬁMmﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%é;ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ% (eI -

AHPEFS > 5P D 2l OO 7 st i PRE ey Ml - =5
(Pl o (S 2 RIS Ol SO i A gﬁbﬁ[%?ﬂﬁu



Action

-25-
EHiv > iﬁﬁﬂf—?f&ﬁ B “BRErsET fhip J;ﬁé?, | 2 EJIHE"J‘F N o
SRSV E I RS OO 5 S ik P R £ 17 A

Pyt 2 I'F'EJ}IZ“]F”T— FHEWIP] (A= OO0 =2 O 1) - RYE T (=
lﬂcﬁ?ﬁ : E,TE J BB HTE FTVJE'LJTW‘E’?‘D%J T PR VL HRRL T T B R
(FR=pe ,Eﬂj BRTERFE I ] T o ISR e T ] fIJE?JiIF,ﬂ“ﬁ
‘OO’ ﬁ“u&ﬁlﬂ:ﬁﬁ% FE&l:?ﬁin#ﬁb?k*[J *Jﬁ”r RApAEE 2 E F‘Fﬁlﬂrﬁ‘f’
[k St DI i flJﬁ‘]‘Frm IE‘“&IFEW riﬁ”é R i PR ?i’f“ ‘E}Iﬁ%buf[u

(5 ) fl s g [ A5 B 3

£ ﬁﬁ ST T RECRLH PR TR [ se B ST 38 - S IR
e pﬁr@j?ﬁhfﬁ”ﬁfﬁl“*ﬁw%ﬂﬁﬁ TW“J*H e O O?F&T?%ﬁjl
AUE'BS IR F RV RS Larr{]l%p iy F‘E‘ ,Frpg. p-ﬂfpﬁjij, FEfl
P A UL L fWﬁﬁ@@”*ﬁ#ﬁﬁ”ﬁ%ﬁ@”%aﬁﬁpflFE
SRS - e

E'}’ﬂﬁ’fiiﬁ;@iﬁf[ﬁ*: ["Eﬁ@[ﬁJEﬁ’Bﬁ?ﬁ'fﬁiwﬁfpﬁl;’ﬂﬁ 25 (MBI IERE TR e R S Ry L
Hl}uﬁ‘iiﬁﬂfp’ﬂ“?f— e A =R l’[ﬁ'%?ﬂé—” A iFTBplE YR

T gt AT T R PP ERLR %U??Lﬂ ”‘?’%M?Ei = p ,MM E|
H{ﬁ” [ i ﬁfi?ﬁbﬂj_Fr TRf SRRV *F' G RABNRLYES
ﬁ%ﬁﬁp VYR o

ﬁ'w”ff‘ﬁﬂjf SR BT RS (8 25 RS %Lﬁflﬁ'wh?#ilé?%;

» 25 ﬁff?&?ﬂ FHTRE] @%‘fﬁiﬁ* (B Bk cuﬁ FI PS8 B i J«?ﬁ
FOEIRT ) G~ B IS O Se R Eﬂ’r%?ﬁugﬂigﬁ BURFIT ~ 6
LRI SRR RS T i&IF’EJH%’T— A o 25 P rﬁ[p [R5 B | JJE'
IS AR (S SIS E VR [y AR SOOI o 2 T %Q?ﬂ?fff‘
= ‘MF’?“N,Q— R i l‘p‘wﬂrﬁ \ﬁ‘%, FRE YR ﬁjr,u o

(1) 0 R

SUFELT AR ORI « UV 5 R OFERSS R
Hﬂmwf SRR FUIMR ) 9 3 [ R sy e J\%ﬁ'“ﬁiﬂfﬁﬁ“
ﬂ?*ﬁﬁifi [ ’mﬁup Fg s E'rrf“ffﬂ“jiﬁ:iﬁf:%ﬁ‘[‘iﬁﬁp Fi AL ﬁf I
,”‘ e o T S rirﬁtﬁ IR Ry s 1~ S0 RAIIRE =
e [



Action

-26-

(Zr) H 3

s 1) DR o SHACS A LV PR ARSI (e 3
P R S U O R £ (SRR S AL
P 2 TR = ORI 7 PEREEIR= 2B T [E 5 TaR  bl T FR
PRSI » 25 TPy (BF RsH o 5 1 =<

DI » U SRR S OB WO TR ] T E
SRR » B S PR [ 0L PR SR
(RS [T - SR g R -

5 RGP R OPRRE D O FTOEECE BRI @ ST AR
T H RS F R -

= BRI F IR PN 2 BB I - e B R ORI =2
FH GRS P O+~ O 3 %) BVl [ e HAng 4
E%@Wﬁ@%%&$ﬁ’ﬂﬁW%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ@$@%’5ﬁmw%@%@E
T (RO -

T BB IO TR PR TR R R S A
S R T o IS PR R SRS AR - R A T M
ST e AT o < O PR VR 6 A - 25 P I
[N B IE T P RIgE 3 AT o~ R IO P B
ESAN(AE SR e[Sl dlined T”w“ﬁ'ﬁﬁ&]%ﬁ% o

- LR - T SR 815 S U R b L B
F[fj%%l,ﬁ?-j'ﬁ%f—? ) ],ﬂv[[rgfj— ERE A _&/Fgﬂ%‘/" FYSYEHE T pugsgs L
e T DO ¥ BB HES - DRI TR T
W Imi Y E}"'ﬁ?mf”ﬁfj?jlgfrﬁ T RIRGL - ST S Fﬁ’?fﬁ?ﬂiliﬁlﬁi ; Eufﬁf‘
A EAPIOMTE RSTSI  £5 0455- B
E’1®%$n¢ﬁﬁﬁa—gﬁﬁ@m_;ﬁ@ﬁﬁwwﬂw?ﬂléﬁo

Tl 0708 PR ORI SRR ] BN B PR S
S FRETR R o A0 S TSR Rl A VR 7S
RS 3ﬁ@3’<ﬁfj4\ﬁ{ﬂ&gj& s RIS Y -

PF=s 25 LRARI PO & DI 3 1 T FARRIEOS F 7 A



Action

-27-

T PR - LB FOTGL - RIS Iy IO BT (AR
LR LU » 2 7 T » 28 3 e g 7 e g
I (10 FRLEIAOSTIRFIAGER - = ) - 505 FL 253 @iy o 1
Pl fylo o SRR ~ VR T R s [ )

§

2007=FT7TH 18 (H¥=)

http://www.enb.gov.hk/tc/news events/speeches presentations/speeches 070718aht
ml




